The mysterious blast that rocked New York City's Upper East Side this week destroyed a 19th-century building with a history of secrecy.

On July 10, a gas explosion leveled the four-story structure, injuring five pedestrians, ten firefighters, and a doctor who lived in the building. A police investigation is now examining whether a bitter divorce battle led the doctor, who later died from his injuries, to trigger the explosion in an attempted suicide.

Completed in 1882, the brownstone was designed by noted New York architect-builders L. D. Russell and J. B. Wray, according to Seri Worden, executive director of the Friends of the Upper East Side Historic Districts.

"The building was an intact 1880s brownstone, and there aren't too many of those left, because many of those houses were updated in the early 20th century," Worden says. "That particular brownstone had been minimally altered. It retained its stoop, cornice, and incised Neo-Grec detailing." The Neo-Grec style incorporated Greek and Roman details but was considered less rigid than standard Neoclassicism.

According to The New York Times, the house also served as a meeting place for a clandestine group of New Yorkers who shared gossip and gathered intelligence during World War II. Called "the Room," the group formed in 1917 and included such notable figures as book publisher Nelson Doubleday; real estate magnate Vincent Astor; Kermit Roosevelt, son of Theodore Roosevelt; and newspaper publisher and department store heir Marshall Field III, the Times reported.

The Room continued until it was superseded by more formal entities such as the Central Intelligence Agency after the war. In 1981, the New York City Landmarks Preservation Commission included the building as a contributing historic resource in the Upper East Side Historic District.

The Friends group now plans to weigh in whenever a new structure is built on the site. "We will testify [before the landmarks commission] on whatever is built," Worden says, "and will work with the developers and architects to develop something that is appropriate for that historic district."

Want Today's News headlines delivered to your e-mail box? Sign up for our weekly e-newsletter >>
- New historic district showcases Miami's modern architecture - July 10, 2006
- Legislation puts N.C. industrial sites back in service - July 6, 2006
- Ill. museum to store Native American remains discovered in attic - July 5, 2006
- Franklin, Tenn.'s "Old, Old, Old Jail" gets new lease on life - June 29, 2006
- Mesa Verde archeological sites open for centennial celebration - June 28, 2006
- Brooklyn rowhouses with anti-slavery ties may not escape demolition - June 27, 2006
- N.J. community bands together to save pre-revolutionary house - June 26, 2006
- Historical marker stolen from Detroit's ill-fated Tiger Stadium - June 22, 2006
- Battered New Orleans mansion awaits demolition - June 20, 2006
- Performing arts take center stage in refurbished Neb. school - June 19, 2006
- Restoring a theater deep in the heart of Texas - June 15, 2006
- Okla. Main Street center moves into landmark gold dome - June 14, 2006
- Md. birthplace of Declaration of Independence signer restored - June 13, 2006
- A mighty windmill returns to Salinas, Calif., estate - June 12, 2006
- Preservation buyer sought for H. H. Richardson home - June 8, 2006
- National Barn Survey events highlight rural preservation - June 7, 2006
- N.J. group hopes to keep train station restoration on track - June 6, 2006
- Wis. preservationists shed light on century-old glass dome - June 5, 2006
- Sixty-year-old neon bunny keeps hopping, for now - June 1, 2006
- Cleveland protects 1853 house used in Underground Railroad - May 31, 2006
- Maine depot goes from ammunition to amenities - May 30, 2006
- Nearly two dozen historic lighthouses need caretakers - May 25, 2006
- International workshop restores adobe monuments - May 24, 2006
- Demolition looms for landmark St. Louis dormitory - May 23, 2006
- Yellowstone volunteer program among Preserve America honorees - May 22, 2006
- Freeport, Maine's 1849 town hall becomes a meeting house again - May 18, 2006
- National landmark designation official for Lewis and Clark campsite - May 17, 2006
- Oakland preservationists open doors to threatened Victorian house - May 16, 2006
- Gettysburg restores vandalized monument, but case remains unsolved - May 15, 2006
- Restored Victorian carousel reopens in New York - May 11, 2006
- NASA transfers rickety 1890 schoolhouse to Fla. preservationists - May 10, 2006
- Brooklyn volunteers fight to save Revolution-era church - May 9, 2006
- Montpelier restoration finds long-hidden presidential artifacts - May 8, 2006

More News >>